

[Energy mix, learn from foreign experts] “Too much subsidies for renewable are ‘inefficient’...nuclear should not be completely excluded.”

Seoul Economy Daily
April 28, 2019

<1> There is no free energy transition. Words from German energy experts.
Nuclear and coal should not be excluded.
Renewables should gradually replace.
LNG expansion is also only a temporary solution; due to ghg emission, it should be reduced back later.
Pros and cons of each energy source should be properly informed.
Natural environments and economic conditions of South Korea should be considered.
Decisions should be not made abruptly but a long-term approach is needed.



Christoph M. Schmidt, Chairman of the German Council of Economic Experts



Karen Pittel, Director of the IFO Center for Energy, Climate, and Resources



Manfred Fischedick, Vice President of the Wuppertal Institute

The third version of “National Energy Master Plan,” often called “Constitution of energy” was made public on the 19th of April, 2019. Following President Moon’s election pledge, the plan states “there will be a drastic increase in renewable and natural gas while there will be no more constructions of nuclear power plants, which have safety issues, and coal-fired power plants, which are often considered as the main source of PM 2.5.” There are many controversies. It has been pointed out that there will be an instant increase in the electricity price and global ghg reduction target is not adequately reflected.

The government and stakeholders are voicing their opinions questioning whether following the plan will bring a clear sky without air pollution and whether it is the right choice for the country to abandon both nuclear and coal

Commented [MF1]: In the interview I clearly highlighted that an energy system transition is necessary in Germany and South Korea and that such kind of pathway includes a phase out program of nuclear power plants and coal fired power plants. The latter one with regard to reduction of GHG emissions as well as particulates. Of course no „over night“ phase out is possible and should be implemented considering the role both options play in the current Korean energy system, but a clear pathway is necessary and as such a Korean energy policy in that direction is very much appreciated.

Commented [MF2]: I highlighted that in addition to renewable energies improvement of energy efficiency (at the supply and demand side) is necessary and could support the energy system transition even high-technology countries like Germany and South Korea..

Commented [MF3]: See above, I mentioned, that of course disruptive pathways should be avoided, but a clear mid- and longterm strategy is needed including ambitious short-term actions to set the starting point.

at the same time.

From April 8th to 12th, Seoul Economy Daily visited Germany, a country that went through such conflicts ahead of South Korea and a role model country for South Korea with regards to energy transition. During that time, we asked for advice from Prof. Dr. Christoph M. Schmidt, known as one of the Germany's 'five wise men' and the Chairman of the German Council of Economic Experts, and Prof. Dr. Karen Pitter, the Director of the IFO, one of the five main economic research institutes in Germany. Also, we interviewed Prof. Dr. Manfred Fischedick, the Vice President of the Wuppertal Institute for Climate, Environment and Energy, who recently visited South Korea. Every one of them agreed to the long-term exclusion of nuclear energy, but they all had different opinions with respect to its speed and direction. To sum up their advice on South Korea, there are three main points. First, "there are high costs involved in the Korean energy transition policy, so they should convince the public on the increased burden of expenses beforehand." Also, "instead of instantly making decisions, discussions should be continuously held." They emphasized that "Germany is also not the right answer. South Korea should find its own answer."

The experts mainly showed negative responses when asked to evaluate German energiewende, which aims for "phase out of nuclear and coal as well as expansion of 100% renewable." Prof. Dr. Schmidt stated that "it is very ambitious to stay away from economy that depends on nuclear and coal" but added that "renewables expansion policy through substantial subsidies has put a major strain on the public and Germany did not enforce an energy price policy that had basis in ghg emissions. Therefore, it will be difficult for Germany to meet the 2020 ghg reduction target." Prof. Dr. Pitter evaluated that "renewable subsidies cost almost 25 billion euros every year and it is very inefficient."

They all agreed to the point that enforcing energy transition in South Korea will put a greater strain on the Korean public. In other words, it is dishonest of the Korean government to enforce the energy transition policy while explaining that 'there will no increases in electricity bills.' Prof. Dr. Pitter said "The current South Korean energy policy is a costly solution. If the government decides not to increase the electricity bills, then there will no increase, but someone will have to bear the expenses." She also explained that "In Germany, electricity prices are set by market prices and the government cannot intervene, so the increase in the renewables subsidies was led to a sharp increase in the electricity bills." Due to such issues, the common opinion was that when the governments enforces energy transition, democratic process are mandatory. Prof. Dr. Fischeidick acknowledged and advised that "It is true that there will an increase in electricity bills. For a successful energy transition, through a multi-criteria assessment, pros and cons of all energy sources should be openly shared with the public and stakeholders and their participation should be encouraged." Prof. Dr. Schmidt "if we are talking about a dictatorial government, then it'd be easy to transition the energy policy, but the citizens won't follow. Don't try to find a solution immediately, but instead, try to find a common ground through a long-term dialogue."

There were various opinions when asked about how South Korea should have its energy mix strategy to reduce ghg emissions and PM 2.5. Prof. Dr. Pitter advised that South Korea should not completely exclude nuclear energy. She insisted that "in order to carry the energy transition policy in a long term, it is more desirable to operate nuclear power plants and coal-fired power plants in the short run while gradually replacing them with renewable. It is important to reduce air pollution ratio and attain the ghg reduction goal through such a strategy and this will bring the highest social support with respect to energy transition costs."

Prof. Dr. Schmidt answered that "the answer to energy transition can be found from the market rather than from central plans. Once ghg emission levis are increased, then household and corporations will try to find energy sources with less emissions, so the competitiveness of renewable will naturally strengthen." However, he pointed that "in such a case, there should an alternative plan to secure acceptance of consumers and industry that will face greater burdens."

The opinion that LNG could serve a short-term role, but it would not be fundamental solutions predominated. Prof. Dr. Fischeidick claimed that "LNG could be a help for the PM 2.5 problems, but it cannot be a long-term strategy in terms of ghg reduction. Eventually, LNG will have to be reduced as well." Prof. Dr. Pitter pointed out that "Germany is utilizing PNG while South Korea is importing to utilize LNG. One should be informed that additional air pollution and ghg emissions are driven in the process of liquefying and transporting natural gas."

The experts all said that it is important for South Korea to find the right answer of its own considering the country's natural environmental, economical and political conditions. Prof. Dr. Pitter emphasized that "the fact that renewables prices are much lower these days than those of the times when Germany was deploying renewables would be positive for South Korea. However, as the conditions of the two countries are different, it is

Commented [MF4]: In that context I had a specific explanation: I did not (!) say that a switch to renewables will increase the consumer prices and will lead to an economic burden, I even highlighted the co-benefits (socio-economic benefits and others) and stressed that a Business as Usual development at the end comes up with even higher costs as you have to react faster in future decades when potential damages of the current pathway become more visible. There is another point that mentioned very clearly in the interview), that is the fact that the costs associated with the Renewable Energy Law in Germany (without any doubt German electricity consumers have to pay a significant amount of money to support market penetration for renewable energy based electricity generation) have the basis in the years 2010 up to 2015 when market dynamic and penetration rate were high and specific costs of renewables (particularly photovoltaic systems) were very high as well. The current situation is totally different as PV module prices decreased dramatically over the past years and enable now a comparable cheap market penetration of renewables. This is a totally different situation now for South Korea to start an ambitious energy system transition pathway.

In other words: Coming back to South Korea that means that the situation now is quite different and gives the country a chance to go along an energy transition pathways without the high costs that ... [1]

Commented [MF5]: There is considering the different conditions and path dependencies of each country no chance to make a 1:1 copy of an successful energy system transition from an other country, however there is a chance to learn from each other and to avoid failures others made in the past. And yes, I made very clear that shaping a successful energy system transition pathways needs an open and transparent debate involving the people, inviting them to be part of the change process and tell them the truth, that no form of energy provision comes along with no (!) impacts. So, it is role of the political and public debate to decide about the appropriate way. From my point of view there are a lot of convincing arguments that the combination of further (fast) market penetration of renewable ... [2]

Commented [MF6]: I did not (!) use the phrase "dishonest", I just said (see above) that a successful transition process needs public acceptance and support and as a basis for that an open and transparent debate. In Germany we did not very well in this context and now have to overcome the so called NIMBY phenomenon (i.e. lot's of complains at the local level where projects are planned to be implemented).

Commented [MF7]: No, I did not say said in this context. I said that the electricity price in Germany increased over the last decade (see above) based on the high cost of renewables in the past. In addition I highlighted that for the consumer it is not the specific price that matters, but the energy bill. Combining a renewable energy market penetration strategy with an energy efficiency offensive (a majority of energy efficiency measures is highly attractive from an economic point of view) in a smart way can even lead to a reduction of economic burden of the consumer.

desirable for South Korea to efficiently make its investment and reduce costs according to the country's situations rather than repeating after Germany." He also added that "it is very crucial to put efforts into renewables deployment for ghg reduction. In return, policies should be planned from an economic aspect to prevent sensitive reactions from the public to the electricity bills." Prof. Dr. Fischedick also noted that "South Korea's situation is different from that of Germany, which has had anti-nuclear movement since the 60's. Every problem has conflicts inside but there should be concession to fine the equilibrium."

Commented [MF8]: Again in the context of the comments above it is quite clear that you can not get rid of anything over night, so it is the task of decision makers to set priorities and to weight different goals. However, that does not mean to avoid any kind of ambitious phase out program, but to put them in the right mid- and long-term context and to inform the public about the background and rationale.

In that context I had a specific explanation: I did not (!) say that a switch to renewables will increase the consumer prices and will lead to an economic burden, I even highlighted the co-benefits (socio-economic benefits and others) and stressed that a Business as Usual development at the end comes up with even higher costs as you have to react faster in future decades when potential damages of the current pathway become more visible. There is another point that mentioned very clearly in the interview), that is the fact that the costs associated with the Renewable Energy Law in Germany (without any doubt German electricity consumers have to pay a significant amount of money to support market penetration for renewable energy based electricity generation) have the basis in the years 2010 up to 2015 when market dynamic and penetration rate were high and specific costs of renewables (particularly photovoltaic systems) were very high as well. The current situation is totally different as PV module prices decreased dramatically over the past years and enable now a comparable cheap market penetration of renewables. This is a totally different situation now for South Korea to start an ambitious energy system transition pathway. In other words: Coming back to South Korea that means that the situation now is quite different and gives the country a chance to go along an energy transition pathways without the high costs that accompanied the German Energiewende at the beginning of the decade.

There is considering the different conditions and path dependencies of each country no chance to make a 1:1 copy of a successful energy system transition from another country, however there is a chance to learn from each other and to avoid failures others made in the past. And yes, I made very clear that shaping a successful energy system transition pathways needs an open and transparent debate involving the people, inviting them to be part of the change process and tell them the truth, that no form of energy provision comes along with no (!) impacts. So, it is the role of the political and public debate to decide about the appropriate way. From my point of view there are a lot of convincing arguments that the combination of further (fast) market penetration of renewable energies and at the same time improving the energy efficiency (at the supply and demand side) should be the basis.